RESPONSES TO RFP QUESTIONS

LASER SYSTEM ENGINEERING SERVICES

NNG09266079R
1.
On the spreadsheet Exhibit 1A-Gov Price Model-Bid, all of the hours and all of the material costs are allocated to this one sheet. What CY should Offerors assume for the labor rates?

 
RESPONSE: The revised section L uploaded on February 13, 2009 eliminated this requirement/restriction from L.17 Cost Volume.

2.
On the spreadsheet Exhibit 1A-Gov Price Model-Bid, indicates that the Management/Administrative hours are burdened with OFFSITE rates. Can NASA confirm our assumption that we would use of ONSITE rates for personnel we plan to have work ONSITE for any Management of Administrative tasks that would be conducted at GSFC?

RESPONSE: The Exhibit 1 uploaded with the RFP on February 13, 2009 does not require Management/Administrative hours to be bid Off-site. 
3.
 In the responses to questions issued on February 20, NASA provided a definition of onsite and offsite locations (Response to Question 16).  However, the RESPONSE is not in agreement with the Pricing Model Exhibit 1A, where it clearly identifies manufacturing as ONSITE.  Can NASA clarify where the manufacturing would be conducted for the purposes of pricing and completing Exhibit 1A?

RESPONSE: The Exhibit 1 uploaded with the RFP on February 13, 2009 does not identify Manufacturing hours as On-site. As the responses uploaded on February 20th states, “Manufacturing hours refers to work performed at the prime or subcontractor’s manufacturing facilities.”
4.
 Section L (b) (2) p.94 states “Text in Diagrams, charts, tables, artwork and photographs shall be no smaller than 10 point.”  When diagrams, charts, tables, artwork and photographs are created we will ensure that type font not less than 10 is used.  However, when graphic material is imported into a document, scaling may reduce the font size.  We will ensure that all text in graphic material is easily readable.  How will NASA deal with graphic scaling for imported files?

RESPONSE: Offerors shall ensure that text in diagrams, charts, tables, artwork and photographs from imported files are not smaller than 10 point.
5.
   Is the BOE page limit a total limit between all members of a given bid or a limit for 
each business that is providing a cost proposal?  That is, if 2 companies are working together to bid on this opportunity, do each of them have 3 pages for their respective BOEs or do they have 3 pages collectively?

RESPONSE: The 3 pages limit applies to each BOE document submitted by the prime and each proposed subcontractor responding to the RTO.
6.
There does not appear to be a requirement in sections L or M for potential bidders to illustrate to the government their collective understanding/capabilities relative to the entire SOW.  Was this an omission from the RFP or will this information, typically requested in GSFC proposals, not be required in this instance?

RESPONSE: This procurement does not require potential bidders to illustrate to the government their collective understanding/capabilities relative to the entire SOW.

7.
Section L.14 (b) identifies the proposal contents on page 93.  Can we assume that the documents identified in the Table that are not included in the page count for the various volumes can be referenced and included in appendices?

RESPONSE: Documents listed under Section L.14 (b) that are excluded from volume page limitations can be referenced and included as appendices to the designated volume.
8.         Will the RTO cost evaluation include fee?

RESPONSE: L. 17 Cost Volume Representative Task Order instructions state that Costs for the RTOs are not required.  Offerors shall follow the proposal instructions under this section. 
9.
In the evaluation of operational performance by the eventual winner, will there be a difference in the evaluation of services tasks and end items in the PEP?  If so, please clarify the differences.

RESPONSE: The difference  in the evaluation of service task orders and end-item task orders is stated in RFP Clause G.2 Award Fee for Services Contract (1852.216-76),” Clause G.3 Award Fee for End Item Contracts (1852.216-77), and Attachment I - Performance Evaluation Plan uploaded on February 13, 2009. 
10.
The Solicitation Letter indicates “The Government does not anticipate enforcing the clause [sic. EVMS] and provision throughout the performance of the contract.” However, Section L.2, p. 83 includes the Notice of EVMS and seems to be in conflict with the Solicitation Letter instructions.  Please clarify the use of EVMS for this contract and identify whether an EVMS Plan needs to be included in the Proposal by the offerors.

RESPONSE: Offerors shall provide the information requested under L.2 Notice for Earned Value Management System (EVMS) to demonstrate to the Government the company’s capabilities to comply with the EVMS requirements for End-Item task orders over $20M. The revised RFP cover letter attached to these responses replace the following sentence “The Government does not anticipate enforcing the clause and provision throughout the performance of the contract” with “EVMS will be enforced if an end-item design development task order is issued with a value of $20M or more.”
11.
Section J, p. 75 includes a list of attachments.  Sections D, E, and F indicate that these are TBP (to be provided).  Does NASA intend to provide samples of these documents, or are they to be provided by the offeror in the response to the proposal?

RESPONSE: NASA will not provide samples of these documents. As stated in L.15 Offer Volume TBP means “to be proposed by contractor”. Offerors shall follow the submission instructions listed under L.16 Mission Suitability - Proposal Instructions.
12.
 Attachment I of this List of Attachments identifies a Performance Evaluation Plan that is included in Section J.  However, Section L.20, p. 118, also identifies”Enclosure #3 – DRAFT Performance Evaluation Plan.”  Are these documents the same, and if not will NASA provide the DRAFT P.E.P. that was not included in Section L?

RESPONSE: The revised RFP sections L&M uploaded on February 23, 2009 with Amendment #1 revised L. 20 Exhibits and Enclosures to read “Enclosure #3 – Reserved.”
13.
The subject RFP is for a Laser Systems Engineering Services.  Do we assume that the Laser System includes Optical, Electrical, Thermal and Mechanical subsystems, or is the request for laser optical engineering services only?

RESPONSE:  As stated in the Scope of Work of Attachment A – Statement of Work:
“The purpose of this contract is to acquire engineering and manufacturing related services for the ICESat-2 Project as required, for the formulation, design, development, flight fabrication, integration, testing, verification, and operations of the ICESat-2 ATLAS Instrument space flight laser and ground system hardware. The emphasis in engineering services will be in the areas of laser systems engineering, laser physics, process engineering, optical engineering, laser assembly and laser testing.”

14.
Can the minimum value of the program be estimated more precisely?  Surely NASA expects to expend more than the minimum $1M on a procurement this comprehensive.

RESPONSE:  The Government cannot estimate the value more precisely other than stating that the minimum ordering value is $1M and the maximum ordering value is $35M.
15.
In the pricing model all Manufacturing Labor is to be bid at ONSITE rates, while the SOW Function 4 includes "...identification, procurement, fabrication, assembly, testing and delivery of associated space flight hardware at the Contractor's facility and/or Goddard Space Flight Center. "  Can you provide an estimate of the percentage of manufacturing anticipated to be ONSITE vs. OFFSITE?

RESPONSE: The Exhibit 1 uploaded with the RFP on February 13, 2009 does not identify Manufacturing hours as On-site. As the responses uploaded on February 20th state, “Manufacturing hours refers to work performed at the prime or subcontractor’s manufacturing facilities.”

16.
The model contract contains FAR Clause 52.223-3(Jan 1997) - Alternate I (July 1995) Hazardous Material Identification and Material Safety Data (Section I.1)

That clause requires the offeror to list any hazardous material and provide the corresponding Material Safety Data Sheet as part of its offer.  However, our specific work scope will not be known until the contract is awarded and future task orders are issued.  Can the offeror wait to provide its hazardous material list after receipt of each task order or should this clause be completed for the proposal based on our understanding of the material required for RTO 1 and 2 in the RFP?

RESPONSE: Offerors must list in the proposal response those hazardous materials that could apply throughout the life of the contract based on the requirements of the Statement of Work. Other applicable hazardous materials will be incorporated in the contract as Task Orders are issued.
17. 
L.12 Government Property Management Information (1852.245-80) (DEVIATION) (Sept 2007) requires the offeror to identify all Government property in its possession that it intends to use in the performance of this contract.  In addition, the offeror shall disclose its intention to acquire any parts, supplies, materials or equipment to fabricate or acquire an item of equipment.  Should this list of GFP and planned equipment be limited to the requirements of the general SOW or should the requirements of the RTOs be considered also when compiling this list?

RESPONSE: Offerors must provide the Government Property list based on the requirements of the Statement of Work. Task Orders issued at contract award will determine the Government property that will be provided to the contractor.  
18.
Section L.14 (b) (1) Proposal Content and Page Limitations Table, pg 93, Past Performance Volume (a) Information from Offeror identifies a 15 Pages** limit.  The ** states”Includes prime and each significant subcontractor……”  We are unclear whether the page limit is for the entire Past Performance Volume or 15 pages for the Prime Contractor and 15 pages for “each significant subcontractor.”  Can NASA clarify the page limit for this section?
RESPONSE: The 15 pages limit under the Past Performance Volume applies to the overall Past Performance Volume for both prime and subcontractors collectively. 

//signed//__________

     Nylsevalis Ortiz-Collazo                                                        March 3, 2009
          Contracting Officer
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